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From: Szczepanik, Valerie

Sent: 2018-06-12T22:10:29-04:00

Importance: Normal

Subject: Fwd: Speech

Received: 2018-06-12T722:10:29-04:00

DRAFT Digital Assets Speech 2018-06-11.doex
ATTCOG01 him

This just in- OGC comments. have not reviewed yet.
Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Jarsulic, Laura"” JOV>
Date: June 12, 2018 at 8:50:48 PM EDT
To: "Szczepanik, Valerie" GOV>

Subject: Fwd: Speech

Page 2 of 15

Here are my thoughts - please keep in mind what I said in my email a minute ago -
you can ignorc much of the heavy editing if you'd like - the big issues are
information asymmetry, the idca of deleting the line about ether as a way of
generating more discussion, and some edits to the description of Howey,

I might have backed out the edits that aren’t highlighted if [ had the chance today - so
you're secing part of my process in all it’s ugliness and I apologize! But I don’t

want to causc further delay.
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ssct Transactions: -r?Commented [A1]: Please insert the standard disclaimef.
- footota:

The Securit-es and £ :?responsf'
any private publication or statement of any SEC employee or
Commussioner. Th.s speech expresses the author's views and do
not necessarily reflect those of the Commissicn, the Commissicners,:
Lor other members of the sta’f.

There has been considerable discussion recently in the press and at legal conferences : -
Commented [A2]: Thisis a catchy title. 8ut to the extent that

the speech focuses more on Howey than Gary (and the fac: that
regarding whether a digital asset offered as a security! can over time become something other many outside the building may not understard tae joke), you could;
change it to something ike: ‘D gital Asset [ransactions and Howe
When Is the Sele of a1 O-ange Tree (or @ Tuken) Just a Tree, and
© When Is it a Security?”

than a security. I think framing the question that way might miss an important point, which I

hope to make with my remarks here today.

To start, I think a better line of inquiry is: “Can a digital asset or token that was originally
offered in a securities offering ever be later sold in a manner that does not constitute an offering
of a security?” In cases where the digital asset or token represents a set of rights that give the
holder a financial interest in an enterprise the answer is likely “no.” In these cases, calling the
transaction an initial coin offering, or “ICO,” or a sale of a “Token,” won’t take it out of the

purview of the U.S. securities laws.

But what of those cases where there is no longer any central enterprise being invested in
and where the digital asset or token is sold only to be used to purchase a good or service
available through the network on which it was created? I believe in these cases the answer is a
qualified “ves,” and I"d like to share my thinking with you today about the circumstances under

which that could occur.

First, [ would like to start with a little background on the new world of digital assets.

Most of you are no doubt quite familiar with Bitcoin and know of blockchain — or distributed

! Section 2(a)(1) of the 1933 Act [15 U.S.C. § 77b(a)(1)] and Section 3(a)(10) of the 1934 Act[15 U.S.C. §
78c(a)(10)] define “‘security.” Section 2(a)(1) of the 1933 Act and Section 3(a)(10) of the 1934 Act contain “slightly
different formulations™ of the terms “security,” but which the U.S. Supreme Court has “treated as essentially
identical in mcaning,” Reves v. Emst & Young, 494 U.S. 56 at 61, n. 1.
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ledger technology. AsI have come to learn, what may be most exciting about this technology
is the ability to share information, transfer value, and record transactions in a decentralized
digital environment. What does that mean? Payment systems, supply chain management,
intellectual property rights licensing, stock ownership transters and countless other potential
applications can be conducted electronically, with a public, immutable record without the need
for a trusted third party to verity transactions. Using these new networks, one can create digital
information packets that can be transferred using encryption keys. These packets are sometimes
called coins or tokens, and can be obtained through mining, distribution, sale or exchange by
users in the network. Some people believe these new systems will forever transform e-
commerce as we know it. There is excitement around this new technology, and a great deal of
speculative interest. Unfortunately, there also are many cases of fraud. In many regards, it is

still “early days.”

But that is not what I want to focus on today. I am here to talk about how these digital

tokens and coins are being issued, distributed and sold. In order to raise money to develop these

new systems, promoters” often sell thasaeleas, rather than sell shares, issue smmented [A3]:

Tracks preceding sent.

notes or obtain bank financing. But, in many cases, the economic substance is the same: funds
are raised with the expectation that the promoters will build their system and investors can earn a

return on the instrument — usually by selling their tokens in the secondary market once the

2T am using the term “promoters™ in a broad, generic sense. The important factor in the legal analysis is that there is
a person or coordinated group (including “any unincorporated organization” see 5 U.S.C. § 77n(a)(4)) that is
working actively to develop or guide the development ol the infrastructure of the network. This person or group
may be, varicusly, founders, sponsors, developers, or “promoters™ in the traditional sense. The presence of
promoters in this context is important to distinguish from the circumstance where multiple, independent actors work
on the network but no individual actor’s or coordinated group of actors’ efforts are essential efforts that affect the
failurc or success of the enterprisc.
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promoters create something of value with the proceeds and the value of the digital enterprise

increases.

When we see that kind of economic transaction, it is eas~straightbraard to apply the
Supreme Court’s “investment coniract” test first announced in SEC v. Howey.> As you will
remember, the test requires an investment of money in a common enterprise with an expectation
of profit derived from the efforts of others. And it is important to reflect on the facts of Howey.

A hotel operator sold interests in a.1 prange-essss+ grove to its guests, along with a gervice

contragt lo eultivale and harvest the oranges. The transaction was recorded as a real estate sale,

together with a service contract. urchasers could arrange to service th& Commented [A4]: Edit made because in Howey, the Court
noted that some purchasers dic not purchase the service contras
As to the glirchasers who bcught only the trees, the Court made
hougn they nad been offered a security, they had
actually bgught a security {they bought only the trees). In

¢ underlying papers, | telieve the facts show that some of the
purchasers d d, 1n fact, a'rarge for a service contract from a
different company {not Howey). In hight cf al of these facts, the
 Howey est reflects a great emeunt of flexibitty in its application.

:Commented [AS]: Edit made to rettect the facts of rovey

:Commented [AG]: Howey enthusiasts (If there are any outside
the SEC?) will know that the service company was Howey-in-the-
Hulls.

empbhasis [is] placed on econo p

was found to be an investment contract, and hence a security. Commented [A7]: The Court found that anly the purchase of
land and service cont-act was the purchase o° a security {those whg
: bought land only had not purchased a security)

las in the Howey case. whens or cons are offen oy as an asset tha 5 1 use mits | Commented [A8]: The edits in this paragraph’aié
_____________________________________________ ! weave Howey into the analysis a biz mure and contini
l:from the prior paragraph.

own rieght - like an orange tree — counlec with a nromise that the asser will be eultivated ina

' A direct compartson between the facts in Howey and the facts

. . - - . presentad by most ICOs s helpfulin that it makes it more clea~ wh
way that will cause it to grow i value. tc be sold later at a profiz. And. as in JJowey, where the the prior paragraph states that It is easy to apply Howey to ICOs.

trees were sold to hetel puests. not tarmers. the tokens tvpically are sold to 2 wiade audience

rather than persong who are likely to use the tolens on the network or in an application. Iashe

3 8EC v. W.J. Howey Co, 328 U.S. 293 (1946). Depending on the facts of any given instrument, it may also need to
be evaluated as a possible security under the general definition of security see footnote 1 and the case law
interpreting it.

41d. at 298.
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1008 we have seen. overchelminelv. sramoters tont their abilite to ercate some wutevative
ICOs we have secn, overwhelmingly, pramoters tout their ability to ercate some nmevative

appheatton-of-blockehainteehnology— In both situations — the sales of both the trees and tolens -

theThe investors are passive and.- M marketing efforts are not targeted narrowly -aud rarely just

te-potertial-users-of he-applieation. But the sale of fokens is. in some wavs. even more clearly
the cala At a cocnrbs than the cala at'the traco 10 Flemoms Ty Flen, the aranoes teeeo aleands
the sals of 3 security than the sale of the troes in Howey, In Howey, the orange tregs alreads

existed and the very concept of cultivaring trees and harvestng oranges 1s a business model that

is casy to understand. In f et the purchasers in Jowey wers niol oven required to purehase the

scrvice contract te cultivate the trees. By contrast, in the ¢ase of tokeng or coins. the A

Erprealbat-heeutsetbusiness medel and very viability of the application 15 uncerfain and

typically 1s not casy to discern at the outserstiuneertan, and the purchaser has no choige but to

relv on the efforts of others to build the network and make the enterprise a suceess. At the

outsctat-stasse | the purchase of a token looks a lot like a bet on the success of the enterprise and

not the purchase of something used to exchange for goods or services on the network.

As an aside, you might ask, given that these token sales often look like securities
offerings, why are the promoters choosing to package the investment as an ICO or token
offering? This is an especially good question if the network on which the token or coin will
function is not yet operational. I think there can be a number of reasons. For a while, it was
believed such labeling might, by itself, remove the transaction from the securities laws. I think
people now realize labeling an investment opportunity as a coin or token does not achieve that
result. Second, this labelling might be hoped to bring some marketing “sizzle” to the enterprise.
That might still work to some extent, but the track record of ICOs is still being sorted out and
some of the sizzle may now be more of a potential warning flare for investors. Some may be

attracted to a blockchain-mediated crowdfunding process. Digital assets can represent an

CONFIDENTIAL SEC-LIT-EMAILS-000471400
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efficient way to reach a global audience where initial purchasers have a stake in the success of

the network and become part of a network where their participation adds value beyond their

""" Commented [AS]: We recommending dcleti
for two reasons ~firs:, the main discussion of this concept 1s
presented later in the spgecn, and ‘ncluding 1= here breaks the flo
of the soeech; and, second, t seemrs to introcuce a factor or test f
whether a token 1s @ “utility” that doesn’t appear in the list of
factors at te end of the speech (whether it is used predominant|

. purchase goods or servi ’

investment contributions.

1iut I believe some industry participants are beginning to realize that, in some

circumstances, it might be easier to start a blockchain-based enterprise in a more conventional
way. In other words, do the initial funding through a registered or exempt equity or debt offering
and, once the network is up and running, distribute or offer blockchain based tokens or coins to

coins zre for use en Lhe nelwork, not [or the purpose ol secondary market trading. This allows

the tokens or coins to be structured and offered in a way where it is evident that purchasers are

not making an investment in the development of the enterprise.

Returning to the ICOs we are seeing, strictly speaking, the token — or coin or whatever

the digital information packet is called — all by itselfis not 1, |a security, just as the Commented [A101: We suggest this edit because there are
i things that we would say are securities all by themselves —i.e.,,
. B things that are tn he Securities or Exchange Act definition. Also -
orange groves in Howey were not. Instead. the token or ¢oin (or orang: tree) may or may not be we could imagine a situaticr in which a stare In 3 company is
instead issued as a token. Tnat would be the exception to the rule:?
: that the bit of code itself is not the security.

oftered and sold as a security depending on sow Central-a-detenninme-whetherasesariye

betngsaldis-hew it is being sold and the reasonable expectations of purchasers. For example,

When someone buys a housing unit to live in

CONFIDENTIAL SEC-LIT-EMAILS-000471401
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mmented [A11]: Wc suggest moving this tacatostnote or
into a parenthetical attached to the case. It might be confusing he
; where a broader poirt is being made.

the sarne asset car, be offered and sold in a wav that causes investors to have a reasonable

expeciation of profits based on the offerts of othery. For example, ifWhen that sames housing

unit is oftered with a management contract or other services-assa-tvestirers, it can be a

security. lr‘

And so with digital assets. The digital asset itself is simply code. But the way it is sold —
as part of an investment; to non-users; by promoters to develop their idea — can be, and, in that
context, most often is, a security — because it evidences an investment contract. And regulating
these transactions as securities transactions makes sense. The impetus of the Securities Act is to
remove the information asymmetry between promoters and investors. In a public distribution,
the Securities Act prescribes the information investors need in order to make an informed
decision, and the promoter is liable for material misstatements in the offering materials. These
are important safeguards, and they are appropriate for most ICOs. The disclosure marries nicely
with the Howey investment contract element about the efforts of others. As an investor, the
success of the enterprise — and the ability to realize a profit on the investment — turns on the
efforts of the third party. So learning material information about the third party — its background,

financing, plans, financial stake, and so forth — is a prerequisite to making an informed

5 United Housing Found., Inc. v. Forman, 421 U.S. 837 (1975).

6 Guidelines as to the Applicability of the Federal Securities Laws to Offers and Sales of Condominiums or Units in

a Real Estate Development, SEC Rel. No. 33
- az Dhascal 1 >

en  TEA T AT AN AT TOGEY T
Fid— o s T e T AL YO
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investment decision. Unless the third party is compelled by the securities law to disclose what
it alone knows of these topics and the risks associated with the venture, investors will be

uninformed and are at risk.

But «hal happens if there i no third parly or promoter lo make Uis disclosurs? In other

words, whelil the tcken or eoin’s related network is sullicienily decentralized Lo the point (ha,

there is no person or group o which purchasers would reasonabiv expecled W carrv ouL essznlial

manager:al or entrepreneurial efforts? Where thers is no person which investors

reasorably expect (o provide those efTurtz. thenistdse-pointthe-wayte-vndher the ller or sale off

ihale digital asset Hensset-sn-may no longer represent a security offering.

Commented [A13]: While we agree that a central rurpose o
the Securities Act is to address an information asymmetry. | think
we wor-y that it does no: folow that there 1s no longer an
asymmetry once a hetwork secomes cecentralizad. There likely ar
stilt people who have far more information (i e., Buterin hkely has :
! far more information that retail pu:chasers o- Etners. Infact,
disclosure Is likely to still be important to surchasers {and
disclosure cou d help address the information asymmetry that is
network becomes ty-decentralized, the ability to identify an issuer or promoter to make the el 10 cont nue o fers sk for sore e after decentraliz o
< ot the bigger point 15 that i7's no longar an investment contract
once thare are no “efforts o others” to point to — plus, without a
ol tokens in such a group in controlthere’s no one to hold responsible for previd ng

Mereaxes 'his 1: demonstrated by the possibility that, as a

disclosure becomes difficult—srd-perhepirresnintess.

decentralized netveork are more Tileiv o have boughl an assel tral was sor offered as parl oo an The fact that tokens on a sufficient y decentralized network are n
fonger securities —and no lunger are requited to register, with all
the benefits te investors of registration seems to point out what
might be considered the “regulatory gap” that exists in this space

stment contret beea

se there 13 no longer a third party

11 other words, this speech acknowledges that there is an “other”
category — t's not a security because there’s no “controlling” gro
{at least in the Howey sensel, yet, | ke many other things
{medication, cred t cards} there may be a need for regulation to
protect purchasers.

expect o provide Lhe essential managerial or entrepraneurial elTorls.

As T referred to earlier, it is a lengstanding principle of tederal seciwities law that whether

ansition tothe next paf

an asset is offered or sold as a security turns on the particular Facts and ¢ircmmstances

surrounding the offer and salc.® Tt follows that an asset that is sold as an investment contract at

ong point i time mav at some Later point in tinie ke sold in ina wav that docs not mect the test

for an wvestment contraet, due to a change in faets and cireumstances,

flivenin Howev. (he Supreme Courl acknowledeed thal the persons who purchased (he Lrees bul

nat the asrrio 1y
ol ine seivice ¢on
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And so, when I look at Bitcoin_teday, I do not see a central third party that

Commented [A15]: 'We suggest making this change because it
seems that ir the future, there may be groups or persons that do
. . . . . zppear to be key determinirg tactors (but those are not persons
The network on which Bitcoin functions was operational and appears to have been who have control in the Hovsey sense — rather, they are pe-sons
that cssentrally arc fcliowed by the crowa or “allowed” to be a
termintng factor).

highly decentralized from its inception. In other words. it docs not appear that investors can

romaniyahly
130N

o Pae
TCASCNANY CHPpOL

mmented [A16]: As above, we suggest deleting this
sentence becadse of our concern that informational asymmetries
likely do stitl extst in some form even where an enterprise Is

cntreprencurial effonts-,

cecentralized. The application of the securties laws may have
valugz, but, as a practical mattcr, there s not a way to implement
them.

Commented [A17]: We still have reservations asott Inctuding
statement directly about Ether n the speech. Even with the

I caveats in the sentence, it seems that t would be difficult for the
agency to take a cifferent position on Ether in the future.

Furtner the rest of the parazraph stronaly implies that the thinking
applies to Ether, Witnout the sentence about Ether those
imphcations migh: generate a useful reaction about Ether {from
: purchasers or those In the FinTech space) With the sentence, th
reaction seems less li<ely to focus on the ana ysis, and more likely
.4 to foeus on the petential fall out of making a direct statement
about Lthe’s status as a security.

Over time, there may be other sufficiently decentralized networks where regulating the tokens

that function on them as a security may not be required. And of course there will continue to be

systems wlere investors reasonable thetrelv-expecten central actors to provide whese key efforts

area-kev-to-thesucosss-etthe-enterprice. In those cases, application of the securities laws

protects the investors who purchase the coins.

As I have tried to point out, the analysis is not static and the nature of a security does not

10

ding

inhere to the instrument. HrroLn

the oller and sale. We applv the Howey lesl al the tiwe of that offer and sale. and can reach a

in time. depending on changes in the Taels ard

different conelusion at vardous poi

cireurrstanzes. Even digital assets with utility in an existing eco-system could be packaged and

seanlatad enbitiermar-raiveotherpoliorismerandes the fodorals

I

1 The Supreme Court’s investment contract test “embodies a flexible rather than a static principle, one that is
capable of adaptation to meet the countless and variable schemes devised by those who seck the use of the money of
others on the promisc of profits.” Howcy, at 299.
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sold as an investment strategy sontractthat can be a seoty. If a promoter were to place Bitcoin
in a fund or trust and sell interests, it would create a new security. Similarly, investment
contracts can be made out of virtually any asset (including virtual assets), provided the investor

1s reasonably expecting profits from the promoter’s efforts.

Let me emphasize an earlier point: simply labeling a digital asset a “utility token™ does
not turn the asset into something that is not a security.!! True, the Supreme Court has
acknowledged that if someone is purchasing an asset for consumption only, it is likely not a
security.'? But the economic substance of the transaction determines the legal analysis, not the
labels.”* The oranges in Howey had utility. Orin my favorite example, the Commission warned
in the late 1960s about investment contracts sold in the form of whisky warehouse receipts.'*
Promoters sold the receipts to US investors to finance the aging and blending processes of
Scotch whisky. The whisky was real —and, for some, had exquisite utility. But Howey was not
selling oranges and the warehouse receipts promoters were not selling whisky for consumption.

They were selling investments, and the purchasers were expecting a return.

We expect issuers and market participants will want to understand whether transactions
in a particular digital asset involve the sale of a security. We are not trying to play “regulatory
gotcha.” We are happy to help promoters and their counsel work through these issues. We stand
prepared to provide more formal interpretive or no action guidance to market participants about
the proper characterization of a digital asset in a proposed use. In addition, we recognize that

there are implications under the federal securities laws of a particular asset being considered a

11 [ T]he name given to an instrument is not dispositive.” Forman, at 850.

12 Forman, at 853.

13 See footnotes 9 and 10.

14 SEC Rel. No. 33-5018 (Nov. 4, 1969); Invcstment in Interests in Whisky, SEC Rel. No. 33-5451 (Jan 7, 1974).
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security. We understand that industry participants are working to make their services compliant
with the existing regulatory framework, and we are happy to continue our engagement in this

process.

What are some of the factors we would look to in assessing whether a digital asset is
offered as an investment contract and is thus a security? Primarily, we are looking to the role of a

third party — whether a person, entity or coordinated group of actors —E B Commented [ALS]: This cd t s intended to capture the fact
that there 1s ikely to oe somre grouo trat is driving the success of

. . the enterprise — that group may sh ft throughout time, and it ma

. That question will only have inf uence because itsideas are sound and attractive to
others. So the central issue is whether investors can reasonably
expect a pe r group to take control and provide the ti

| effosts. ) '

always depend on the particular facts and circumstances, and this list is illustrative, not

exhaustive:

Commented [A20]: Although we understand the reason for
¢ using the word “organized” nere, it might appear to a reader to

. . . . connote that a level of formality 1s required to meet the {fowey
of the digital assets, the efforts of whom play a significant role in the development and test.

1 Isthere a person or & fthat has sponsored or promoted the creation and sale

maintenance of the asset and its potential increase in value?

Commented [A21): We suggest deleting thic. Although having:
& stake might show controf (which could te useful for the Howey
analysis), we worry that ink ng the stake to the person’s motivatios
might appear to endorse the idea that there needs to be strict
vertical commonality (1.e., that the interests of the promoter and
the investor need to be aligned — that they'll otn profit from the
success of the enterprise). The SEC has rejected that view,

[y

Would purchasers reasonably believe such efforts will be undertaken and may resultin a

return on their investment in the digital asset? Does the promoter continue to expend
funds from proceeds or operations to enhance the functionality and/or value of the system
within which the tokens operate?

3 Are purchasers “investing,” that is seeking a return? In that regard, is the instrument

marketed and sold the gencral public instead of markewy to potential users of the

network for a price that reasonably correlates with the market value of the good or

service in the network?
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Commented [A22]: We suggest these edits to address o
concerns with potntirg to in‘ormat onal asymrmetries and whethel
: they continue to exist after decentralization has occurred.

- Is there a person or entity

In the context of a factor, we also are concerned that pointing to
whether the application of the securities laws makes sense, ard
whether there are information asymmetr es, wil encourage woul
be v olators to claim that there have made fulsome disclosure
T outside the context of registration such that there no longer ts a
purpose in applying the securities laws or requiring registration {in
L other words, they've curad any potential nformation asyrrmetry). _}I

tiimented [A23]: it seems that the decentralized entity co
continue to have some vntirg rights <o long as they dor’t have
: meaningful control.

5 Do the decentralized persons or entities exercise

control, or are they limited, ing

ng by another person or organized gri

=

| Commented [A24]: would this other person or entity exercise

meaningful control sLch that the entity is not really decentrahized
: And should the word “decentralized” be usec here? We are askil
In the meantime, are there contractual or technical ways to structure digital assets so they because we aren’t sure Fow this factar is ntended to come out.

. . . X . . . In other words, in order for this to be a “yes, t's a security’ facto
function more like a consumer item and less like a security? I believe so. Again, these are should it read:

! “Do persons or entities exercise meaningful controt over the
including through another person or organized group?”

certainly not “get out of jail free” cards, and we would look to the economic substance of the

transaction, but promoters and their counsels should consider these, and other, possible features.
This list is not intended to be exhaustive and by no means do I believe each and every one of
these factors needs to be present to establish a case that a token is not being offered as a security.
This list is meant to prompt thinking by promoters and their counsel, and start the dialogue with

the staff — it is not meant to be a list of all necessary factors in a legal analysis.

. r : s
an ra1sng Commented [A25]: The edits in this  ction are sugg sted to
T make clear that a “yes” answer to the gquestion supports the

1 Tsgoken creation commensurate with meeting the needs of users+-—rather v

potential finding of a non-secunty.

capifal tor the purpose of building a networlc-with-feedingspeenlation? oo

2 Isit clear that the primary motivation for purchasing the digital asset is for personal use

or consumption, as compared to investment?
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1 or aAre tokensthey distributed in ways to meet users’ needs
rather than hiparded? For example, does the token degrade in value over time or can it
only be held or transferred in amounts that correspond to a purchaser’s expected use?
of a few that can exert influence over the application?

5 Have purchasers made representations as to their consumptive, as opposed to their
investment, intent?

6 He-promerers

secondary-marset—orthe-assels-oraAre independent actors

setting the price 1n the secondary market as opposed to a promoter (for example. u

supporting the price in the sceondary markst:?

7 Is the application it-ear-—stape-developmesteorfully functioning_at the time the tolens

«7¢ sold, as apposed to being in an carlicr stage of development?

8 Is the asset marketed and distributed to potential users as_opposzed toer the general
public?
9 Are the tokens available in increments that correlate with a consumptive versus

investment intent?

These are exciting legal times and I am pleased to be part of a process that can help
promoters of this new technology and their counsel navigate and comply with the federal

securities laws.

SEC-LIT-EMAILS-000471408



Case 1:20-cv-10832-AT-SN Document 830-49 Filed 06/13/23 Page 1 of 12

Exhibi 155



CONFIDENTIAL

Case 1:20-cv-10832-AT-SN Document 830-49 Filed 06/13/23 Page 2 of 12

To: Fredrickson, David R.

Valeri .GOV ; Seaman, Michael P.
Cc: edfearn Bret GOQV - Seidel
Gar .GOV]; Maitra, Neelanja

E[ GOV]; Orr, Andrea GOV]
From: Greiner, Natasha (Vij)

Sent: 2018-06-06T21:36:38-04:00

Importance: Normal

Subject: RE: Ether speech

Received: 2018-06-06T21:36:39-04:00

DREAFT Digital Assets Speech 2018-06-04 (TM comments .docx

AL,

.GOV]; Szczepanik,

.GOV]
.GOVY]; Goldsholle,

GOV], Bergoffen, Roni

Attached are TV s comnents on Bill's dra 't speoch. Please fet us know if you has o any questions or

Thanks,
Natasha

From: Seidel, Heather
Sent: Monday, June 04, 2018 11:21 AM
To: Greiner, Natasha (Vij); Maitra, Neelanjan
Subject: Fwd: Ether speech

Sent from my iPhone
Begin forwarded message:

From: "Hinman, William” GOY>
Date: June 4, 2018 at 11:10:36 AM EDT

To: "Moskowitz, Luc GOV>, "Mem

Raquel" 10V>, "Redfearn, Brett”
GOV>, "Avakian, Stephanie”
GOV>, "Karp, David S." <
< .GOV>, "larsulic, Laura"
< sov>, "McHugh, Jennifer B." <
< GOV>, "Goldsholle, Gary" <
TOV>
Ce: "Fredrickson, David R." < GOV, !
< G V>, Michael P."
Subject: E eech

GOV>, "Fox,
GOV>, "Blass, Dalia"
GOV>, "Peikin, Steven"

GOV> "Morris, Daniel (Bry

GOV>, "Bartels, David P."

Attached please find a draft of the speech | had mentioned, which suggests that we do
not need to see a need to regulate Ether, as it is currently offered, as a security. That
fanguage is in brackets and would be used if we all are in agreement. We also have a
call with Buterin later this week to confirm our understanding of how the Ethereum

Foundation operates.

Please feel free to share any comments with me andthe folks in the cc line.
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Director of the Division of Corporation Finance
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
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There has been considerable discussion recently in the press and at legal conferences

regarding whether a digital asset offered as a j can over time become something other
than a security. I think framing the question that way might miss an important point, which I

hope to make with my remarks here today.

To start, I think a better line of inquiry is: “Can a digital asset or token that was originally
offered in a securities offering ever be sold in a manner that does not constitute a securities
offering?” In cases where the digital asset or token represents a set of rights that give the holder
a financial interest in an enterprise the answer is likely no. In these cases, calling the transaction

an initial coin offering, or “ICO,” won’t take it out of the purview of the U.S. securities laws.

But what of those cases where there is no central enterprise being invested in and where
the digital asset or token 1s sold only to be used to purchase a good or service available through
the network on which it was created? I believe in these cases the answer is a qualified “yes,” and
I°d like to share my thinking with you today about the circumstances under which that could

occur.

First, I would like to start with a little background on the new world of digital assets.
Most of you are no doubt quite familiar with Bitcoin and know of blockchain — or distributed
ledger — technology. AsI have come to learn, what may be most exciting about this technology
is the ability to share information, transfer value, and record transactions in a decentralized
digital environment. What does that mean? Payment systems, supply chain management,

intellectual property rights licensing, stock ownership transfers and countless other potential

CONFIDENTIAL

;. As a general overall comment, this speech Is what the gener:

1 title/intro and 1nitial guestions within the introductory paragraph
: focus on the "what is a security” discussion rather than the issue of
l: morahing,;

Document 830-49 Filed 06/13/23 Page 4 of 12

public/mar<et particioants kave been ask ng ‘or, so we are very
supportive of the speech and what it ts commun cat ng.

The general sentimert of the speech 1s focused on the “what is a
security” discussion, Query whether we shouid reframe the

As written, we would like to add a disclaimer that the remarks
primarily pertain to the Securities Act, as there are sign ficant
Exchange Act 1mp icatiors {especia ly to the extent that a digital
gsset Is a secarity, that a~e rot discussed. We w Il draft scmething
and send it along.

mmented [A2): Consider adding a FN noting the following:

Sect on 2(a){l) of the 1933 Act [15J.SC.§ 77b(&)(1;] and Section
3{a):10) of the 1934 Act [15U.5.C. § 78c{a)(10)} define "secunty.”
Sect on 2({a){1) of the 1933 Act and Section 3{a){20) of tne 2934 Act:
contain “slightly different formutat onc” of the terms “security,” bu
which the U.S, Supreme Court has “treated as essential y icentical
in meaning,” Reves v. Ernst & Young, 494 U.S. 56 at 61, n. 1.
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
users in the network Some people believe these new systems will forever transform e-
commerce as we know it. There is excitement around this new technology. There is also a great

deal of “irrational exuberance™ and, unfortunately, many cases of fraud.

But that is not what I want to focus on today. I am here to talk about how these digital
tokens and coins are being issued, distributed and sold. In order to raise money to develop these
new systems, promoters! often sell the tokens themselves, rather than sell shares, issue notes or
obtain bank financing. We have seen public distributions on the internet and private placements
to sophisticated investors. But, in many cases, the economic substance is the same: funds are
raised with the expectation that the promoters will build their system and investors can earn a
return on the instrument — usually by selling their tokens in the secondary market as the value of

the digital enterprise increases once the promoters create something of value with the proceeds.

When we see that kind of economic transaction, it is easy to apply the Supreme Court’s

“investment contract” test first announced in SEC v. Howey. As you will remember, the test Commented [A3]: Consider noting that while Howey Is often
Lsec to determine whether a digital asset 1s & security, there are
. . i i . . . also other app icasle tes:s/legal standards that could apply in this
requires an investment of money in a common enterprise with an expectation of profit derived context {depending on the facts and circu

from the efforts of others. And it is important to reflect on the facts of Howey. A Florida hotel

1T am using the term “promoters” in a broad, generic sense. The important factor in the legal analysis is that there is
a person or coordinated group that is working actively to develop the infrastructure of the network. This person or
group may be, variously, founders, sponsors, developers, or “promoters” in the traditional sense. The presence of
promoters in this context is important to distinguish from the circumstance where multiple, independent actors work
on the network but no individual actor’s or coordinated group of actors” efforts are essential.

2 SEC v. W.J. Howey Co, 328 U.S. 293 (1946).
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operator sold interests in a citrus grove to its largely out-of-state guests. The transaction was
recorded as a real estate sale, together with a service contract. In theory, purchasers could
arrange to service the grove themselves, but few pursued that option. In fact, the purchasers
were passive, relying largely on the Howey Service Company’s etforts tending the assets for a
return. And in articulating the test for an investment contract, the Supreme Court stressed:
“Form [is] disregarded for substance and the emphasis [is] placed on economic realities.”™ So

the purported real estate purchase was found to be an investment contract, and hence a security.

In the ICOs we have seen, overwhelmingly, promoters tout their ability to create some
innovative application of blockchain technology. The investors are passive. Marketing efforts
are rarely targeted to potential users of the application. And the viability of the application is
still uncertain. At that stage, the purchase of a token looks a lot like a bet on the success of the
enterprise and not the purchase of something that may someday be used to exchange for goods or

services on the network.

As an aside, you might ask, given that these token sales often look like securities
offerings, why are the promoters choosing to package the investment as an ICO or token
offering? This is an especially good question if the network on which the token or coin will
function is not yet operational. T think there can be a number of reasons. For a while, it was
believed such labeling might, by itself, remove the transaction from the securities laws. I think
people now realize labeling an investment opportunity as a coin or token, does not achieve that
result. Second, this labelling might be hoped to bring some marketing “sizzle” to the enterprise.

That might still work to some extent, but the track record of ICOs is still being sorted out and

31d. at 298.
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some of the sizzle may now be more of a potential warning flare for investors. Some may be
attracted to crowdfund through a blockchain mediated process. Digital assets can represent a
relatively frictionless way to reach a global audience in order to seed a network where initial
purchasers have stake in the success of the network and become part of'its early adopting
participants who add value beyond their investment contributions. Related to this, some believe
that once the token or coin is operational, it will cease to be a security and secondary liquidity
may be easier to achieve. While I recognize that possibility, as I will discuss, the ability to
transact in a coin or token on the secondary market requires a caretul and fact-sensitive legal

analysis.

I believe some industry participants are beginning to realize that, in some circumstances,
it might be easier to start a blockchain-based enterprise in a more conventional way. In other
words, do the initial funding through a conventional equity or debt offering and once the network
is up and running, distribute or offer blockchain based tokens or coins to participants who need
the functionality the network and the digital assets offer. This allows the tokens or coins to be
structured and offered in a way where it is evident purchasers are not making an investment in

the development of the enterprise.

Returning to the ICOs we are seeing, strictly speaking, the token — or coin or whatever
the digital information packet is called — all by itself'is not a security, just as the orange groves in
Howey were not. Central to determining whether a security is being sold is how it is being sold.
For example, when a certificate of deposit is sold by a federally regulated bank, the CD is not a

security.! When a CD is sold as a part of a program organized by a broker who offers retail

4 Marinc Bank v. Wcavcr, 455 U.S. 551 (1982).
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investors promises of liquidity and ability to profit from changes in interest rates, the CD is part
of an investment contract that is a security.” Similarly, when someone buys a housing unit to
livein even when represented by an instrument called “stock™ it is probably not a security.5
When the housing unit is oftered with a management contract or other services as an investment,

it can be a security.”

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
efforts of the third party. The investor is relying on the third party. So learning material
information about the third party — its background, financing, plans, financial stake, and so forth
—is a prerequisite to making an informed investment decision. Unless the third party is
compelled by the securities law to disclose what it alone knows of these topics and the risks

associated with the venture, investors will be uninformed and are at risk.

5 Gary Plastics Packaging Corp. v. Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, Inc., 756 F.2d 230 (2d Cir. 1985).

6 United Housing Found., Inc. v. Forman, 421 U.S. 837 (1975).

7 Guidelines as to the Applicability of the Federal Securities Laws to Offers and Sales of Condominiums or Units in
a Real Estatc Development, SEC Rel. No. 33-5347 (Jan. 4, 1973).

CONFIDENTIAL SEC-LIT-EMAILS-000471130



Case 1:20-cv-10832-AT-SN Document 830-49 Filed 06/13/23 Page 9 of 12

Non-Public Drajft
PAL Cormens on drafi of June 4, 2018

But this also points the way to when a digital asset may no longer represent a security.
When the efforts of the third party are no longer a key determining tactor for the enterprise’s
success, material information asymmetries recede. Moreover, as a network becomes truly
decentralized, the ability to identify an issuer to make the disclosure becomes difticult, and

perhaps meaningless.

And so, when we look at Bitcoin, we do not see a third party whose efforts are a key
determining factor in the enterprise. The value of Bitcoin turns on the efforts of decentralized
miners and independent market participants’ assessments of an open-source payment

mechanism. Applying the disclosure provisions of the securities laws in this situation would

*:Commented [A4]: See coriiférit below regarding “not
warranted.” Aithough we do not want to suggest that BTC i
: security, taking too strong a position on the lack of any benefi
subject to confirmation of our understanding of the Ethereum network in discussions with from the disclosure prov sions of the federal securities laws
(presumably 33 Act) mignt te a wedge that could undermine SE
efforts towards other cryptc-assets where the asset is 2 security
. and applyirg the 34 Act principles of fair and orderly markets woul
provi eat valu

seem to add value. [Note to Draft: We expect to use the following bracketed language

derstanding of

representatives of Ethereum Foundation.] [Likewise, based

etwork, regulating Ethi

present state of Et| T as a sceurily does not scem
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And of course there continue to be

we discussed, as written, we have concerns regarding the
sentiment within zhis section of the speech. We think the relevant:
systems that rely on central actors whose efforts are key to the success of the enterprise. In those cuestion, as discussed throughout the rest of the speech, is
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inhere to the instrument.® Like CDs — which when issued by a federally regulated bank are not It Bill (4nd/or the Chairman’s office) wants to make a bianket™

statement that Etner is not a securty (barring any changes of
thought based on the meeting fate- this week with Buterin {or his
will need to discuss this further internally and with

¢ The Supreme Court’s investment contract test “embodies a flexible rather than a static principle, one that is capable
of adaptation to meet the countless and variable schemes devised by those who seck the use of the money of others
on the promisc of profits.” Howcy, at 299.
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securities but when repackaged as part of an investment strategy can be securities even digital
assets with utility in an existing eco-system could be packaged and sold as an investment
strategy that can be a security. A promoter could place Bitcoin in a fund or trust and sell
interests, creating a new security. Similarly, investment contracts can be made out of virtually
any asset (including virtual assets), provided the investor is reasonably expecting profits from the

promoter’s eftorts.

Let me emphasize an earlier point: simply labeling a digital asset a “utility token™ does
not turn the asset into something that is not a security.” True, the Supreme Court has
acknowledged that if someone is purchasing an asset for consumption only, it is likely not a

security.!” But the economic substance of the transaction determines the legal analysis, not the

labels.!! The oranges in Howey had utility. Orin my favorite example, the Commission warned

in the late 1960s about investment contracts sold in the form of whisky warehouse receipts.'?
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

9 “[T]he name given to an instrument is not dispositive.” Forman, at 850.

10 Forman, at 853.
11 See above
12 SEC Rel. No. 33-5018 (Nov. 4, 1969); Invcstment in Interests in Whisky, SEC Rel. No. 33-5451 (Jan 7, 1974).
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prepared to provide more formal interpretive or no action guidance to market participants about

the proper characterization of a digital asset in a proposed use.

What are some of the factors we would look to? Whether a digital asset is offered as an

investment contract and is thus a security will always depend on the particular facts and

circumstances, and fik
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Does appl Securities Act protections make sel Is there a person or entity
others are relying on that plays a key role in the profit-making of the enterprise such that
disclosure of their activities and plans would be helpful to investors? Do informational
asymmetries exist between the promoters and potential purchaser/investors in the digital

asset?

: amounts raised and earmarked for marketing or resarves?

| Commented [A11]: why s this
i it be applied?
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In the meantime, are there contractual or technical ways to structure digital assets so they are less
likely to act like a security? I believe so. Again, these are certainly not “get out of jail free”
cards, and we would look to the economic substance of the transaction, but promoters and their
counsels should consider these, and other, possible features. This list is not intended to be
exhaustive and by no means do I believe each and every one of these factors needs to be present

to establish a case that a token is not being oftfered as a security.

1 e needs of users o
Commented':'[i\'ltt]: Thisis ambiguously worded and it
clear why tnis is relevant.

2 imented [A15]: Unclear what this intends to

hoarded

3

4  Have purchasers made representationsav o theiriconsumpiive:asopposedtothesr @ Commieted [A17]: Does'this g6 to the expectation of orofits
part of HeWeéy? What if ourchasers can have either a consumptive
of an Investment ntent? And ho
into the issuer/sciler’s intent?

5

:':F%ommen't'éd TA18]: The concept of promoting tne idea of

secondary market has been a key factor in our analysis. We sugges|
moving this conce

6 ‘separate list: %

7 Is the asset marketed and distributed to potential users or the general public? Commented [A19]: General comment — as written, it mayn

be apparent to the reader which characteristic or factor weigf
: against it being a security or not.

These are exciting legal times and I am pleased to be part of a process that can help

promoters of this new technology and their counsel navigate and comply with the federal

securities laws.
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To: Seaman, Michael P. .GOVYJ; Lisitza, Davi gov], Cappoli,
James A gov]

Cc: Hinman, William GOV}, Fredrickson, David R. GOV
Szczepanik, Valerie GOV]

From: Jarsulic, Laura

Sent: 2018-06-08T16:33:41-04:00

Importance: Normal

Subject: RE: Updated Language

Received: 2018-06-08T16:33:42-04:00

Thanks for forwarding the new language. And thank you for meeting with us today.

Attached are our comments on the draft that you dirculsted last week, which | think are fairly
consistent with what we talked about today. We haven't updated the comments to take into account
what we learned fror . you loday.

Thanks,
Laura

From: Seaman, Michael P,
Sent: Friday, June 08, 2018 4:20 PM
To: Jarsulic, Laura; Lisitza, David; Cappoli, James A,
Cc: Hinman, William; Fredrickson, David R.; Szczepanik, Valerie
Subject: Updated Language

Here is the most recent version.
Based on our understanding of the present state of Ether and the Fthereum network and how it

operates, regulating the offer and sale of Fther as a security would not appear to further the policy
objectives of the securities laws.
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Digital Asset -

There has been considerable discussion recently in the press and at legal conferences
regarding whether a digital asset offered as a security can over time become something other
than a security. I think framing the question that way might miss an important point, which I

hope to make with my remarks here today.

To start, I think a better line of inquiry is: “Can a digital asset or token that was originally
offered in a securities offering ever be iater offered sore-in a manner that does not constitute a
securities offering?” In cases where the digital asset or token represents a set of rights that give
the holder a financial interest in an enterprise the answer is likely no. In these cases, calling the

transaction an initial coin offering, or “ICO,” won’t take it out of the purview of the U.S.

securities laws.

But what of those cases where there is no central enterprise being invested in and where
the digital asset or token is sold only to be used to purchase a good or service available through
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
for a trusted third party to verify transactions. Using these new networks, one can create digital
information packets that can be transterred using encryption keys. These packets are sometimes
called coins or tokens, and can be obtained through mining, distribution, sale or exchange by
users in the network Some people believe these new systems will forever transform e-commerce
as we know it. There is excitement around this new technology. There is also a great deal of

“irrational exuberance” and, unfortunately, many cases of fraud.

But that is not what I want to focus on today. I am here to talk about how these digital
tokens and coins are being issued, distributed and sold. In order to raise money to develop these

new systems, promoters' often sell the tokens themselves, rather than sell shares, issue notes or

obtain bank financing. Mie-heve-nssn s ic

i butiormrorthe inlemetand-privite-phioemonts

& nophistested-nvester-——But, in many cases, the economic substance is the same: funds are

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
“investment contract™ test first announced in SEC v. Howey.2 As you will remember, the test

requires an investment of money in a common enterprise with an expectation of profit derived

1T am using the term “promoters” in a broad, generic sense. The important factor in the legal analysis is that there is

a person or coordinated group that is working actively to develop the infrastructure of the network, inchding *any

umineorporatal organzation.” 5 11.8.¢. 77b(ai4). This person or group may be, variously, founders, sponsors,

developers, or “promoters” in the traditional sense. The presence of promoters in this context is important to

distinguish from the circumstance where multiple, independent actors work on the network but no individual actor’s
| or coordinated group of actors’ efforts are essential ¢Turts which slleet the Gubure or suceess of the snderprise

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
were passive, relying largely on the Howey Service Company’s efforts tending the assets for a
return. And in articulating the test for an investment contract, the Supreme Court stressed:
“Form [is] disregarded for substance and the emphasis [is] placed on economic realities.” So

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
enterprise and not the purchase of something Humay—+ameduy-be-used to exchange for goods or

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
believed such labeling might, by itself, remove the transaction from the securities laws. T think
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
some of the sizzle may now be more ot a potential warning flare for investors. Some may be
attracted to crowdfund through a blockchain mediated process. Digital assets can represent a
relatively frictionless way to reach a global audience in order to seed a network where initial
purchasers have stake in the success of the network and become part of its early adopting
participants who add value beyond their investment contributions. Related to this, seme

believait is possible that once o networls is sufticient’s deccutralized, or the token or coin is

eperarenalused predominantly o purchase goods or services, #-will-eeassto-bea-secunby

ofterings after that point would not be sceurities ofcring,

hile | recognize that possibility, as 1 will discuss, the ability to transact in a coin or Commented [A3]: Issues surrounding secondary markets are
extremely complicated and beyona the socope of this presentation.;

token on the secondary market requires a careful and fact-sensitive legal analysis.

I believe some industry participants are beginning to realize that, in some circumstances,
it might be easier to start a blockchain-based enterprise in a more conventional way. In other
words, do the initial funding through a wer—restierbregisierea equity or debt offering and once
the network is up and running, distribute or offer blockchain based tokens or coins to participants
who need the functionality the network and the digital assets offer. This allows the tokens or
coins to be structured and offered in a way where it is evident purchasers are not making an

investment in the development of the enterprise.

Returning to the ICOs we are seeing, strictly speaking, the token — or coin or whatever
the digital information packet is called — all by itself'is not a security, just as the orange groves in

Howey were not. Central to determining whether a security is being sold is how it is being sold

and the reasonable expeetation of purchasers. For example,
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hen someone buys a housing unit to live in — even when represented by an

instrument called “stock” it is probably not a security.’ When the housing unit is offered with

a management contract or other services as an investment, it can be a security.”

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

hfaineBanko. . <5308 8551¢1082

S ™~ L el .. ’ L1 'ILI' .,."\- 'I"I",I’\:(\ "’II:."-I‘|E\Q' -

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

But this also points the way to when offering a digital asset may no longer represent a

factor for the enterprise’s success, material information asymmetries recede. Moreover, as a

network becomes truly decentralized, the ability to identify an issuer or promaoter to make the

disclosure becomes difficult, and perhaps meaningless.

And so, when look at Bitcoin, +ve-i do not see a third party whose efforts are a key

determining factor in the enterprise. . e network o v ditcoin fimctions was operational

and appears to have been sufficieniy decentralized trom its inception.

Applying the disclosure provisions of the securities laws in

this situation would seem to add little value. [Note to Draft: We expect to use the following

bracketed language subject to confirmation of our understanding of the Ethereum network

in discussions with representatives of Ethereum Foundation.] [Feewi:

mented [A6]: We are still discussing this internally. We

[There may be other sufficiently
ant to hear what CF learns from its anticipated conversati

decentralized networks where regulating the present-day of¥erings 0, tokens that function on

them as a seeursy-sccuritics offerings may not be warranted.] And of course there continue to be

systems that rely on central actors whose efforts are key to the success of the enterprise. In those
cases, application of the securities laws can protect the investors who purchase the coins. There

will be disclosure requirements and SEC-supervised trading mediated by regulated entities.
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As T have tried to point out, the analysis is not static and the nature of a security does not
inhere to the instrument.? Like-CDs—whichwhenissued-byvafaderallvrepulated bank are nat
securrties but-when repackaped as-part-of andnvesument strategy can be seeurities -¢Even digital
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

8 The Supreme Court’s investment contract test “embodies a flexible rather than a static principle, one that is capable
of adaptation to meet the countless and variable schemes devised by those who seck the use of the money of others
on the promise of profits.” Howey, at 299.

9 “[T]he name given to an instrument is not dispositive.” Forman, at 850.

10 Forman, at 853.

1 See above

12 SEC Rel. No. 33-5018 (Nov. 4, 1969); Invcstment in Interests in Whisky, SEC Rel. No. 33-5451 (Jan 7, 1974).
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We expect issuers and market participants will want to understand whether transactions
in a particular digital asset involve the sale of'a security. We are not trying to play “regulatory
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

circumstances, and this list is illustrative, not exhaustive:

1 Tsthere a person or organized group that has sponsored or promoted the creation and sale
of the digital assets, the efforts of which play a significant role in the development and

maintenance of the asset and its potential increase in value?

3%

Would purchasers reasonably believe such efforts will be undertaken and may resultin a
return on their investment in the digital asset? Does the promoter continue to expend
funds from proceeds or operations to enhance the functionality and/or value of the system
within which the token operate? Has the promoter raised an amount of funding that
seems reasonably related to the costs of creating the network?

3 Ts the instrument marketed and sold to potential users of the network for a price that
reasonably correlates with the market value of the good or service in the network?
Does application of Securities Act protections make sense? Is there a person or entity
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

na

Lo the decertralized persons or enfriies exercise bona fide votung rights and racamungti

4.6 Whether

Ty
Vi ECTT

likely to act like a security? I believe so. Again, these are certainly not “get o

cards, and we would look to the economic substance of the transaction, but promoters an

counsels should consider these, and other, possible features. This list is not intends

gpeculation?
2
irchaser expected use?
3 ss a diverse user base or concentrated in the hands o
4
5
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Ily functioning?

"Commented [A8]: We should discuss whether this p :
should include this level of detail about facto-s that appear to spea

isers or the general public?

These are exciting legal times and I am pleased to be part of a process that can help
promoters of this new technology and their counsel navigate and comply with the federal

securities laws.
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